
  
Board of Directors Meeting 

Thursday, May 15, 2025, 4:00 p.m. 
City of Fillmore City Hall Council Chambers 

250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 93015 
To participate in the Board of Directors meeting via Zoom, please access: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85480305580?pwd=ZnFBWGhtVU05dXd3REFkM255c0h6UT09 
                                  Meeting ID: 854 8030 5580      Password: FPBGSA  

To hear just the audio portion of the meeting, phone into:  
Toll-free number: 877 853 5247 Meeting ID: 854 8030 5580  

 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1A Pledge of Allegiance 
 

1B Directors Roll Call 
 
1C Public Comments 

Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency) will accept 
public comment concerning agenda items at the time the item is considered and 
on any non-agenda item within the jurisdiction of the Board during the agendized 
Public Comment period. No action will be taken by the Board on any non-agenda 
item. In accordance with Government Code § 54954.3(b)(1), public comment will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per speaker per issue. 

 
1D Approval of Agenda 

Motion 
 

2. UPDATES 
2A  Director Announcements/Board Communications: 

   Oral Reports from the Board. 
 

Fillmore Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  
 
Piru Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  
 
Environmental Stakeholder Director Update 
 
City of Fillmore Member Director Update  
   
United Water Conservation District Member Director Update 
 

County of Ventura Member Director Update 
 

2B Executive Director Update 
Information Item 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85480305580?pwd=ZnFBWGhtVU05dXd3REFkM255c0h6UT09


 Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency Board of Directors Meeting  
May 15, 2025 
Page 2  

 The Executive Director will provide an informational update on Agency 
activities since the previous Board of Directors meeting of April 17, 2025. 

 
2C Legal Counsel Update 

Information Item 
 Legal Counsel will provide an informational update on Agency’s legal issues 

and concerns since the previous Board of Directors meeting of April 17, 2025. 
 
2D GSP Consultant Update 

Information Item 
 Representatives from Daniel B Stephens & Associates will provide an 

informational update on the Agency’s groundwater sustainability planning 
activities since the previous Board of Directors meeting of April 17, 2025. 

                                                                                                   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Board 
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items unless a Board member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled items will be 
discussed and acted on separately by the Board. Members of the public who want to 
comment on a Consent Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL 
CALL VOTE REQUIRED) 

 
3A Approval of Minutes 
        The Board will consider approving the Minutes from the Board of Directors 

meeting of April 17, 2025. 
 
3B Approval of Warrants 
 The Board will consider approving payment of outstanding vendor invoices: 

 

             United Water Conservation District          $21,373.64 
             DBS&A                                                     $  5,843.00 
     Naumann Family Farms                          $  1,342.58 
             Aleshire & Wynder                                   $     915.80  
    
3C Monthly Financial Report 

The Board will receive the monthly financial report for the Fillmore and Piru 
Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency. 
 

4. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
4A Watershed Update 
 Motion 

The Board will receive a presentation from United Water Conservation District 
staff on the status of the Santa Clara River watershed water resources.  

 

5. MOTION ITEMS 
 
 



 Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency Board of Directors Meeting 
May 15, 2025 
Page 3  

5A Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget 
Motion 
The Board will receive a presentation from staff on the major Fiscal Year 2025-
2026 Work Plan items and associated estimated costs and provide comments 
and directions. 

6. FUTURE ITEMS

7. ADJOURNMENT

The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Thursday, 
June 19, 2025, or call of the Chair. 

Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of 
Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, including any 
documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for 
inspection at UWCD’s offices at 1701 N. Lombard Street in Oxnard during normal 
business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability 
shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the benefits of, the District’s services, 
programs or activities because of any disability. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, or if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, 
please contact the UWCD Office at (805) 525-4431 or the City of Fillmore at (805) 524- 
1500. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to 
make appropriate arrangements.  

Approved:   
  Board Chair Kelly Long 

(attest) Eva Ibarra 

      (attest) Eva Ibarra 

(attest) Eva Ibarra 

Posted: (date) May 12, 2025  (time) 3:40 p.m.   
At: https://www.FPBGSA.org 

Posted: (date May 12, 2025  (time) 3:45 p.m.  
At:https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA 

Posted: (date) May 12, 2025  (time) 3:50 p.m. 

At: UWCD, 1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard 

Posted: (date) May 12, 2025 (time) 3:55 p.m.        (attest) Eva Ibarra 

      At: Fillmore City Hall, 250 Central Avenue, Fillmore, CA 

https://www.fpbgsa.org/
https://www.facebook.com/FPBGSA/


  

.  
 

  Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, April 17, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. 
                         MINUTES 

 
Directors in Attendance 
Director Carole Fornoff  
Director John Garnica  
Director Debbie Jackson 
Director Gordon Kimball  
Director Kelly Long  
Director Candice Meneghin (arrived 4:30) 

 
Staff in Attendance 
Anthony Emmert, executive director  
Eva Ibarra, clerk of the board 
Patrick O’Connell, senior hydrogeologist      
Christine Carson, legal counsel 

        Stephanie Cabrera, IT staff 
 

Public in Attendance 
Nyvee DeLeon, UWCD(virtual) 
Matt Drunner, Stillwater Sciences 
Evan Lashly, UWCD  

        Tony Morgan, DBS&A (virtual) 
         Nancy Ojeda, DWR (virtual) 

Gus Tolley, DBS&A (virtual) 
Brian Zahn, UWCD (virtual) 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1A Pledge of Allegiance 
  Director Long called the meeting to order at 4:01 p.m. 

 

1B Directors Roll Call 
The Clerk called the roll. 5 Directors were present: Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, Kimball, 
and Long. Director Meneghin was absent. 

 

1C Public Comments 
Director Long asked if there were any comments or questions from the public. None 
were offered. 
 
 
 



Fillmore Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
April 17, 2025 
Page 2 

 
 

1D  Approval of Agenda 
                Motion 

Director Long asked Executive Director Emmert if there were any changes to the 
agenda. Mr. Emmert responded with yes and requested motion item 4B be moved 
after 4D. Director Long then asked for a motion. 

 
Motion to approve the agenda with the requested change, Director Garnica; Second, 
Director Kelly Long. Voice vote: 5 ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, Kimball, and 
Long) none opposed. Motion carries unanimously  5/0/1. 
 

2. UPDATES 
 

2A  Director Announcements/Board Communications: 
        Oral Reports from the Board. 

 

Fillmore Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  
Nothing to report.   
 

Piru Pumpers Association Stakeholder Director Update  
Nothing to report.   
 

Environmental Stakeholder Director Update 
Director absent. 

 

City of Fillmore Member Director Update 
Director Garnica said the City of Fillmore has approved the new well. 
 

                United Water Conservation District Member Director Update 
Director Kimball provided an update on the District’s extensive CIP budget, associated 
revenue needs and proposed groundwater rates. He stated that the District is 
considering the option for a potential future bond measure to spread out the cost of the 
CIP budget. He also provided an update on the Freeman Diversion project. 
 

County of Ventura Member Director Update 
Director Long said the County is working on raising funds for an Arundo donax removal 
program for the County, primarily due to the extreme fire hazard that it creates. 
 

2B Executive Director Update 
Information Item 

 The Executive Director reported groundwater payments are due on April 30.  He 
provided a status report on AB-1520 that will align groundwater data collection 
with the SGMA requirements. He stated that DWR staff provided helpful 
comments on the final grant report and Agency staff have amended the report 
and resubmitted to DWR for consideration. He thanked Chair Long for sharing the 
County of Ventura’s report on the status of the Chiquita Canyon Landfill Incident  



Fillmore Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
April 17, 2025 
Page 3 

 
 and will provide an update for the Board in the near future.  He stated that he will 

be providing a Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget presentation at the 
May 2025 Board meeting. He finalized his update with a mention of a possible 
early June Special Board Meeting to consider the budget and groundwater fees 
for the next fiscal year. 

 

2C Legal Counsel Update 
       Information Item 
        Legal Counsel provided an update on various legislative bills that could affect the 

Agency.  
 

2D GSP Consultant Update 
Information Item 

 Representatives from Daniel B Stephens & Associates provided an update on 
GSP activities completed, and future tasks that are scheduled to be completed. 

 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the Board 
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these 
items unless a Board member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled items will be 
discussed and acted on separately by the Board. Members of the public who want to 
comment on a Consent Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL 
CALL VOTE REQUIRED) 

 

3A Approval of Minutes 
        The Board approved the Minutes from the Board of Directors meeting of March  

20, 2025.  
 

3B Approval of Warrants 
 The Board approved payment of outstanding vendor invoices:  
 

  DBS&A                                                     $13,819.00 
              United Water Conservation District          $13,101.25  
              Stillwater Sciences                                   $12,084.00 
              Aleshire and Wynder LLP                        $     650.70 
                       

     3C  Monthly Financial Report 

The Board received the monthly financial report for the Agency. 
 

Motion to approve consent calendar, Director Jackson; Second, Director Garnica. 
Voice vote: 6 ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, Kimball, Long and Meneghin), 
none opposed. Motion carries unanimously 6/0/0. 
 
 



Fillmore Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
April 17, 2025 
Page 4 
 

4. MOTION ITEMS 
 

4A Biological Data Gaps East Grove GDE Initial Survey and Study Plan 
 Motion 
        The Board received a presentation from Stillwater Sciences and United Water 

Conservation District on the East Grove Groundwater Dependent Ecosystem Initial 
Survey and Study Plan and provided comments and direction. 

   
  Receive and file, Director Jackson, Second, Director Garnica. Voice vote: 6 

ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, Kimball, Long, and Meneghin) none 
opposed. Motion carries unanimously  6/0/0. 

 
4B Domestic Well Drought Vulnerability Plan Development 
 Motion 
 The Board received a presentation from Daniel B. Stephens & Associates on the 

Domestic Well Drought Vulnerability Plan development and provided comments 
and direction. 

   

Receive and file, Director Long, Second, Director Garnica Voice vote: 6 
ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, Kimball, Long, and Meneghin) none 
opposed. Motion carries unanimously  6/0/0.  

 

4C Budget Amendment 
 Motion 
 The Board approved of a mid-year budget amendment. 
 

Motion to approve with removal of rebranding and logo cost, Director Garnica, 
Second, Director Jackson. Voice vote: 6 ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, 
Kimball, Long, and Meneghin) none opposed. Motion carries unanimously  
6/0/0. 

 

4D Website Services 
 Motion 
 The Board approved the website services with CV Strategies. 

 

Motion to approve without rebranding and logo option, Director Garnica, 
Second, Director Meneghin. Voice vote: 6 ayes (Fornoff, Garnica, Jackson, 
Kimball, Long, and Meneghin) none opposed. Motion carries unanimously  
6/0/0. 

  
5. FUTURE TOPICS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 
      None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Fillmore Piru Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
April 17, 2025 
Page 5 

 
 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Director Long adjourned the meeting at 6:07pm, to the next Board Meeting on 
Thursday, May 15, 2025, or call of the chair. 

 

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Fillmore and Piru 
Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Board of Directors meeting of April 17, 
2025. 

ATTEST:  ___________________________________________________ 
                                Kelly Long, Chair, FPBGSA Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST:  ___________________________________________________ 

                 Eva Ibarra, Clerk of the Board 



Check Detail Report
Fillmore and Piru Basins, GSA

April 30, 2025

Accrual Basis  Wednesday, May 07, 2025 11:42 PM GMTZ   1/1

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME LINE DESCRIPTION CLEARED AMOUNT

Citizens Business Bank
22283
04/30/2025 Check 11267 100-00585-00 (INACTIVE) Refund of Available Credit on Closed Account #100-00585-00 - Well 

#04N19W34L01S
Uncleared -1,342.58

04/30/2025 Check 11267 100-00585-00 (INACTIVE) Refund of Available Credit on Closed Account #100-00585-00 - Well 
#04N19W34L01S

1,342.58

22284
04/30/2025 Bill Payment 

(Check)
11268 Aleshire & Wynder LLP Uncleared -915.80

04/30/2025 Bill Payment 
(Check)

11268 Aleshire & Wynder LLP -915.80

22285
04/30/2025 Bill Payment 

(Check)
11269 United Water Conservation District Uncleared -

21,373.64
04/30/2025 Bill Payment 

(Check)
11269 United Water Conservation District -

21,373.64
22286
04/30/2025 Bill Payment 

(Check)
11270 Daniel B Stephens & Associates, 

Inc.
Uncleared -5,843.00

04/30/2025 Bill Payment 
(Check)

11270 Daniel B Stephens & Associates, 
Inc.

-5,843.00



 
 

ITEM NO. 3C Consent Item 
 
DATE: May 07, 2025 (for May 15, 2025, meeting)  

TO: Board of Directors 

VIA: Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 
 
FROM: United Water Conservation District Finance 

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Report 
 
SUMMARY 
The Board will receive the monthly financial reports for the Fillmore and Piru 
Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency). 

 
BACKGROUND 
United Water Conservation District accounting staff has prepared financial reports 
based on the Agency revenue and expenses for the month of April 2025. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 

 

None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

April 31, 2025, Profit and Loss Budget Performance  

April 31, 2025, Balance Sheet 

 



���������	
�������	��
���������������������� �!�"#$�%&%'$%&%(�)�"#%(�*+,-�.�/0/1�2�-
��/0/3

4556789�:8;<;��=>?@>;?8AB�C8A�DB�EFEG�FHIEJ�KC�LCMNFDIFF ��OPO

QR,�)�ST*U�%&%' VWX�)�YTWU�%&%' Q�Z�)�[�\U�%&%( �*\�)�QRZU�%&%( XVX�,�WXR�, �RY]TX �WXR�, �RY]TX �WXR�, �RY]TX �WXR�, �RY]TX �WXR�, �RY]TX_̂�̀a�'&&&b�]c̀�_�d���c�Te�c���f̀_�Wg�c�� &�&& )h%�'& &�&& 'ibUhb&�jk h''U(&&�&& h''U(&&�&& l'ibU%jm�hk limkU&&&�&&'j&&&�V�g�c�\���_�� l&�&& l&�&&'j&&b�,����"��� 'Uhmj�k( kUbjj�'% lbhU(i(�hj l&�&&]\VSS�*\V"̂XTen�_���(%%&&�*c̀o���f̀_� �S�c�f��� l&�&& l&�&&(%%'&�*c̀o�S����)�̂X�Ẁ _�� �f_� bUjmh�%& bU%(&�&b bU%kh�%& bU%(&�&b bU%(&�&b '&k�km bU%'k�kj lhU'mi�hm l(U&&&�&&(%%(&�*c̀o�S����)�]c̀�_�d�cp]S*�*c�n l&�&& l&�&&(%%(%�*c̀o�S����)�]S*�Ẁ _�� ��_� %%U(hk�'h %bUk&m�hh bUh'k�&& &�&& &�&& &�&& l%hUmmm�'h l%bUk&m�hh(%%(��*c̀o���f̀_� �S�c�f����[̀ _f�̀cf_��+�\�ǹc�f_� l&�&& l&�&&(%%(��)��b�\̀ ��f_��]q�[̀ _f�̀cf_� bUmkj�%& j(&�&& %k�(& j(&�&& hi%�ji j(&�&& j(&�&& l%U%mk�'i lhU&&&�&&(%%(��)��%��__�� �\�ǹc���+�V_ f_�)Y���r��� jU(&&�&& bUbhh�(% jU(&&�&& b%U''&�j( jU(&&�&& %hm�&% jU(&&�&& lbhUmb%�%k lh&U&&&�&&(%%(��)��h�]c̀�_�d���c�Y����]�n� (h(�(( kU%'k�kk %hm�&% kU%'k�kk kU%'k�kk (jm�jb kU%(&�&h lbUh(%�%m lhjU&&&�&&(%%(��)��'��f̀ ̀�f�� �Y����]�n� b&Uj(k�&' %'Ukkk�kk '(Uiib�m' %'Ukkk�kk %%Uh'j�kj %'Ukkk�kk 'bi�(' %(U&&&�&h ljkUbm(�hk lb&&U&&&�&&(%%(��*c̀o��S�c�f���)�Ỳ a�q�  �s� _�c�rf f�t l&�&& l&�&&(%%(��)��b�Y��u�̀n�S���t bbk�&b b(U&&&�&& hU'mj�&& b(U&&&�&& 'Ub%b�&& b(U&&&�&& mjb�j( b(U&&&�&& lmU(km�ji li&U&&&�&&(%%(W�*c̀o��S�c�f����)�Wf�_����Yc̀��g��*c̀v��� l&�&& l&�&&(%%(W�)�Wb�Z�����������a�_��+�Ẁ _��n� bUh(%�%m %'Ukkk�kk %iU(&'�mh %'Ukkk�kk bjUbjb�'b %'Ukkk�kk hU'%'�bh %(U&&&�&h l'mU'(%�i( lb&&U&&&�&&(%%(Y�*c̀o��S�c�f����)�]S*�Rn����� l&�&& l&�&&(%%(Y�)�Yb�]q�[̀ �� �Rn����� bUj(h�(' h%U'kk�kk kUi(b�(m h%U'kk�kk b&U'&'�b& h%U'kk�kk b&U%(k�&% h%U(&&�&h lh%U&im�%' lbh&U&&&�&&(%%(T�*c̀o��S����)�]�_�c� �*c̀�c�a�+�*c̀v����Y� na� l&�&& l&�&&(%%(T�)�Tb�q�  �*�caf��\��f�d mUj(&�&b mUj(&�&b mUj(&�&b mUj'k�kj l&�&& lh(U&&&�&&(%%(T�)�T%�]q�Teǹc��T�� �+�*̀ f�t�Y� n jU(&&�&& jU(&&�&& jU(&&�&& jU(&&�&& l&�&& lh&U&&&�&&(%%(T�)�Th�]�_��S�nǹc��wr̀�c��a��U��c�_��U����x kU&m%�h( bhUj'k�kk bbU(&j�ij bhUj'k�kk mUim(�bj bhUj'k�kk %Ui(%�m& bhUj(&�&h lhbUk%j�kk l((U&&&�&&(%%j&�*c̀o�S����)����̀�_�f_� hUhbm�ki iU%'k�kk kUjmk�mh iU%'k�kk bU'hm�kj iU%'k�kk %Uij(�i& iU%(&�&h lbjU%%h�hi l%(U&&&�&&(%%j(�*c̀o�S����)���af_pW �cu�̀o��� %Umb'�jb iU%'k�kk %U%b%�j% iU%'k�kk bU'ki�m' iU%'k�kk k%j�hk iU%(&�&h ljU'(b�ii l%(U&&&�&&(%%m&�*c̀o�S����)�Te����f���Yfc���̀c bkU'm(�%( b%U(&&�&b b'Ubkk�hj b%U(&&�&b iUbii�mm b%U(&&�&b 'Uh&b�%j b%U'kk�kj l''Ub(%�jj l(&U&&&�&&(%%k&�*c̀o�S����)�V�g�c i'm�&& %U'kk�kk bbUk(h�(i %U'kk�kk bb�(m %U'kk�kk %U(&&�&h lb%Uibh�b' lb&U&&&�&&(%(&&�,��� �"��� l&�&& l&�&&(%(&b�,��� �Ẁ �_�� bUm((�j& jU(&&�&& jUj(b�m& jU(&&�&& mU(hi�i& jU(&&�&& kb(�m& jU(&&�&& lbkU&(k�k& lh&U&&&�&&(h&&&�Voof���Ten�_��� l&�&& l&�&&(h&b&�*�r f��̂_òca��f̀_ %'k�kk %'k�kk %'k�kk %(&�&h l&�&& lbU&&&�&&(h&%&�Voof���S�nn f�� hm�j& %'k�kk i%k�(i %'k�kk b�&& %'k�kk bj'�m& %(&�&h lm''�&i lbU&&&�&&(h&%i�*̀������+�[�f f_� k�b& %'k�kk %bh�jk %'k�kk %�&j %'k�kk bmi�k' %(&�&h l'bb�k& lbU&&&�&&(hbb&�Xc��� �+�Xc�f_f_� b(j�bk b%(�&b bmm�(( b%(�&b i'�b% b%(�&b kk�ik b%'�kj l(&k�(( l(&&�&&(h(&&�̂_��c�_�� l&�&& l&�&&(h(b&�,f�rf f�t�̂_��c�_�� %U'mj�'% l%U'mj�'% l&�&&j&bh&���_u�S�c�f���Wg�c��� bh(�&& bh(�&& bh(�&& &�&& &�&& lbh(�&& l%j&�&&ZTX�V*T\�X̂Z]�̂ZWV[TV�g�c�Ten�_���Y�nc��f��f̀_ %U(j'�kk %U(j'�kk %U(j'�kk %U(j'�kk %U(j'�kk %U(j'�kk m(m�hh %U(j'�kk lmU(mh�h& lb&U%kk�kiZTX�VXyT\�̂ZWV[TZTX�̂ZWV[T



���������	
�������	��
�������������������������������� ��! !"

#$$%&'(�)'*+*��,-./-*.'01�2'0�31�4546�57899�:2�;2<=53855 ��>?>

@A@BCB��D@�EFGG����BHH��H���I�B��JF��HKLLLL����I�JM������N�GG� OPQRSSLTSKKLKLL�EN�NU��H��FHN��HH����I KRVLVRVQLTOKB��JF��H�W���NX�Y��KKLLL�B��JF��H�W���NX�Y�� ZL[RZKQT[KA���G�EFGG����BHH��HKVLLL�\�]�̂JHN��]�_F�]H VOTKVKVSLL�E���GN�̀�B��JF�� LTLL_Na�]�BHH��H_N��bJG��cNGF�dJ�N�JGN�̀�e���H�fO�e���Hg ZKZRLLLTLLB��FbF����]�h�̂G��N��NJ��i�dJ�N�JGN�̀�e���H�fO�e���Hg iKPRPP[TVQCjB�jCj@jD��Bkh�Dl\j@mCN�YN�N�N�HEFGG����CN�YN�N�N�HB��JF��H�c�n�Y��VLLLL�B��JF��H�c�n�Y�� VPRK[VTOOA���G�EFGG����CN�YN�N�N�HVLLLK�B]X�����MGJb�EJF��n�JM�o���FG� LTLLE��NMJG�N��h�̂�G�b����JM�@�a���]�_���B]bN�NH�G��NJ��c�n�Y�� LTLLAF��AM���Ĵ��B̀���n�c�n�Y�� LTLLDpFN�n[LLLL�Â ��N�̀���������DpFN�n ZKZRLLLTLL[VLLL�W���N��]�D�G�N�̀H VRLVSROQQTVVk���j��Jb� KKQR[LSTP[



Item No. 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT:  

5A Motion 

May 11, 2025 (for May 15, 2025, meeting) 

Board of Directors 

Anthony A. Emmert, Executive Director 

Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The Board will receive a presentation from staff on the major Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan items 
and associated estimated costs and provide comments and direction. 

BACKGROUND 

During the current Fiscal Year 2024-2025, the Agency’s primary activities included: 

1. Amended GSPs. Board approval and July 16, 2024, submittal of amended groundwater sustainability
plans (GSPs) in response to “incomplete” findings from the California Department of Water
Resources (DWR) in January 2024, as required by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(SGMA).  DWR approved the amended GSPs in March 2025.

2. Annual Reports and Groundwater Database. The Agency prepared and submitted the Annual
Reports for its two basins for the 2023-2024 water year and updated its online groundwater
database, as required by SGMA.

3. Groundwater Sustainability Planning Grant. Additionally, the Agency worked with DWR to amend
and finalize all invoices, deliverables and final reports associated with the Agency’s $1.5 million
dollar groundwater sustainability planning grant.

4. East Grove GDE Biological Data Gaps. Initial biological surveys of the East Grove Groundwater
Dependent Ecosystem (GDE) area to better understand the “uses and users” of this important area
of interconnected groundwater and surface water at the west end of the Fillmore subbasin.

5. Cienega GDE Drought Refuge Study-Pilot Project. Development of a study plan and pilot project
prospectus in the Cienega GDE located at the Piru-Fillmore subbasins boundary area to determine
whether artificial irrigation could help a portion of the vegetation in the area survive during long or
severe droughts and serve as a refuge for sensitive species that use the area.

6. Groundwater and Surface Water Modeling. Established a new break-out of the Regional
Groundwater Flow Model for the valley groundwater basins with a much tighter grid to facilitate
future evaluation of the interaction between groundwater and surface water; updated groundwater
and surface water data for the past several years to update the model; and developed modeling
scenarios.

7. Domestic Well Drought Vulnerability Evaluation and Policy Development.  Developed framework for
evaluation of vulnerability of existing shallow domestic wells to future droughts.

8. Groundwater and Surface Water Data Gaps. Identified the key groundwater and surface water data
gaps and began development of a plan to address them.



Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget 
May 11, 2025 
Page 2 

 
9. Well Permit Review Process Development. Development of a well permit review process that 

complies with California Executive Orders N-7-22 and N-3-23 and is complimentary of the Agency’s 
GSPs was halted after the Governor lifted the drought emergency for the County of Ventura in 
September 2024, thereby ending the well permit review requirements. 

10. Export Policy Development. Due to the Governor’s actions to lift the drought emergency, the Agency 
also halted its related effort to evaluate water exports from the basin and to develop a water export 
policy. 

These were the most significant achievements and associated expenditures for the current fiscal year. 

For the upcoming 2025-2026 Fiscal Year, major scope of work items for the Agency include: 

• Annual Reports and Update of Online Groundwater Database – Preparation of annual reports 
for the period October 2024 to September 2025, as well as keeping current the online 
groundwater database. Annual reports will be due to DWR by 01 Apr 2026. (Estimate $33,000) 

• Groundwater Data Gaps – Develop updated technical memorandum addressing groundwater 
and surface water data gaps and plan to address them.  This work will progress through the 
fiscal year.  (Estimate $30,000) 

• East Grove GDE Biological Data Gaps. Biological surveys of the East Grove Groundwater 
Dependent Ecosystem (GDE) area to better understand the “uses and users” of this important 
area of interconnected groundwater and surface water at the west end of the Fillmore 
subbasin. (Estimate $100,000) 

• Sespe Creek Confluence with Santa Clara River Data Gaps. Surface water and groundwater 
monitoring, along with initial biological surveys of the Sespe Creek-Santa Clara River confluence 
area to better understand the hydrology and  “uses and users” of this area commented on by 
National Marine Fisheries Service and California Department of Fish and Wildlife. This work to 
progress through the Fiscal Year 2025-2026.  (Estimate $15,000) 

• Cienega Springs Study-Project Entitlements & Grant Funding – Complete development of study 
plan-pilot project prospectus, including cost estimates, for a study-pilot project to improve the 
recovery of the Cienega area following periods of drought, in conjunction with the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Santa Clara River Conservancy, the University of California, 
Santa Barbara, and The Nature Conservancy.  The primary focus of work for Fiscal Year 2025-
2026 will be developing the access agreements and partnerships for the project, CEQA 
compliance, and applying for grant funds for the construction. This effort will progress through 
the fiscal year, with the goal of having the next phase ready for inclusion in the Fiscal Year 2026-
2027 budget. (Estimate $100,000) 

• Domestic Well Drought Vulnerability Evaluation – Address known data gap by gathering and 
analyzing well construction and maintenance information on the shallowest of production 
water wells and evaluate vulnerability to multiple-year droughts utilizing updated groundwater 
model. This work will progress through the fiscal year. (Estimate $80,000) 

• Refine Surface Water and Groundwater Models – Complete updates of the regional 
groundwater model and address known data gaps, to better characterize surface water flows by 
stream reach and analyze groundwater pumping’s effects on surface water flows and shallow 
production wells.  This work will occur through the fiscal year. (Estimate $65,000) 



Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget 
May 11, 2025 
Page 2 

 
• Annual Subsidence Evaluation – Utilize data gathered by California Department of Water 

Resources on subsidence and develop technical memorandum, which will support the amended 
GSPs.  This work will progress through the fiscal year, as the data becomes available. (Estimate 
$18,000) 

• Five-Year Periodic Evaluations. Preparation of Five-Year Periodic Evaluations for the Agency’s 
two basins.  The evaluations are due to DWR in January 2027. The work will proceed through 
the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 and into the next fiscal year. (Estimate $115,000) 

• Amendment of Groundwater Sustainability Plans and Development of Programs/Projects – 
Development of updated GSPs addressing recommended corrective actions from DWR.  The 
updated GSPs will be submitted to DWR in January 2027, along with the Periodic Evaluations. 
The work will proceed through the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 and into the next fiscal year. (Estimate 
$150,000) 

• As-Needed Technical Support. General support from Agency’s technical team (DBS&A, 
Stillwater Sciences, UWCD) on unanticipated efforts to address new laws or regulations; 
meeting attendance, etc. (Estimate $90,000). 

• Policies Update – Review and update the Agency’s bylaws/policies, with focus on compliance 
with the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards. (Estimate $20,000) 

• Well Permitting Review Process – on hold – not expected to progress during Fiscal Year 2025-
2026. 

• Export Policy – on hold – not expected to progress during Fiscal Year 2025-2026. 

The Agency’s staff and consultant team is scheduled to meet with DWR staff on May 12, 2025, to review 
the Agency’s proposed activities in response to DWR’s recommended corrective actions.  Based upon 
that meeting and subsequent meetings, the Agency may amend its scope of work, schedule and budget.  
Staff anticipates bringing the draft Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget to the Board for consideration at a 
special meeting in early June 2025. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
Proposed Motion: Provide comments and direction on the draft Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and 
Draft Budget. 

1st:  Director_____________________  2nd: Director ___________________________ 
 
Voice/Roll call vote:    
Director Fornoff:   Director Garnica:  Director Jackson: 
Director Kimball:   Director Long:               Director Meneghin: 


	2025-05-15 FPBGSA Board Meeting Agenda
	2025-04-17 FPBGSA Board Meeting MINUTES
	3B Approval of Warrants - April 2025
	3C Monthly Financial Report - April 2025
	3C Monthly Financial Report - April 2025 Attachment A
	3C Monthly Financial Report  -April 2025 Balance Sheet Attachment B
	5A Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan & Budget



